AGENDA
Committee

-

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date & Time

-

Wednesday, 24 July 2019 at 6.30 pm

Venue

-

Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road,
Spalding

Membership of the Planning Committee:
Councillors: B Alcock, J Avery (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, F Biggadike,
H J W Bingham, P E Coupland, H Drury, R Gambba-Jones (Chairman), R Grocock,
C J Lawton, J L Reynolds, G R D Rudkin, M D Seymour, A C Tennant and J Tyrrell
Substitute Members of the Planning Committee
Any member may sit on the pool of substitutes for the Planning Committee provided they
receive training every 12 months as approved by the Council (minute 290(c)/05 refers).
Substitutions are for individual meetings only.
Quorum: 5
Persons attending the meeting are
requested to turn their mobile telephones to
silent mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE
Date: 16 July 2019

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764626
e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA
1.

Apologies for absence.

2.

Minutes
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 26 June
2019 (copy enclosed).

3.

Declaration of Interests.
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item,
except where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of
dispensation.)

4.

Questions asked under the Council's Constitution (Standing Orders).

5.

H09-0276-19
Full Application for erection of 84 dwellings with associated garaging,
roads and sewers at Land rear of Fen Road, Holbeach, Spalding
(Report of the Development Manager enclosed)

(Pages
9 - 26)

6.

H06-0233-19
Full Application for change of use of land (part retrospective) to provide
five additional gypsy/traveller pitches with one day room per pitch and
existing stables converted to dayrooms. Also, erection of one new store
and retention of sheds for pitch 1, with construction of internal road to
facilitate separate ingress and egress to and from the site, including
hardstanding at Green Acres Park, Ropers Gate, Gedney (Report of the
Development Manager enclosed)

(Pages
27 - 38)

7.

H14-0366-19
Full Application for change of use of land to self-storage facility
comprising 150 storage container units (B8 Use), access and parking at
Land at Wardentree Lane & Benner Road, Pinchbeck, Spalding (Report
of the Development Manager enclosed)

(Pages
39 - 46)

8.

H16-0598-19
Full Application for rear single-storey extension to create accessible
bedroom and wetroom at 9 Rowan Avenue, Spalding (Report of the
Development Manager enclosed)

(Pages
47 - 52)

9.

H18-0599-19
Full Application for Rear single-storey flat roofed extension at 72 Princes
Street, Sutton Bridge, Spalding (Report of the Development Manager
enclosed)

(Pages
53 - 58)

10.

Planning Appeals
To provide an update on recent Appeal Decisions (Report of the
Development Manager enclosed)

(Pages
59 - 60)

11.

Planning Updates.

(Pages
5 - 8)

12.

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent.
Note:

No other business is permitted unless by reason of special
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be
considered as a matter of urgency.

This page is intentionally left blank

-1-

Agenda Item 2.

Minutes of a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber,
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 26 June 2019 at 6.30 pm.
PRESENT
R Gambba-Jones (Chairman)
J Avery (Vice-Chairman)
B Alcock
C J T H Brewis
F Biggadike
H J W Bingham

P E Coupland
H Drury
R Grocock
C J Lawton

G R D Rudkin
M D Seymour
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell

In Attendance: The Development Manager, the Senior Planning Lawyer and the
Democratic Services Officer.
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors J L Reynolds
1.

MINUTES
Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee
held on 29 May 2019.
AGREED:
That the minutes be held as a correct record.

2.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
Councillor Drury stated that he had a disclosable pecuniary interest in relation to
agenda item 5, and that he would therefore leave the chamber for the duration of that
item.
Although not a member of the Planning Committee, Councillor Pepper stated he was
a ward member for the application at agenda item 5, that he had a non pecuniary
interest, and would therefore take no part in the discussion.

3.

QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION (STANDING
ORDERS).

4.

H02-0189-19
Planning No. and Applicant
H02-0189-19 Ashwood Homes

Proposal
Full application for the erection of 108
dwellings with associated garaging,
roads and sewers at Crease Drove,
Crowland.

Page 5

-2PLANNING COMMITTEE - 26 June 2019

Councillor Drury left the room at 18:37.
Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had previously been circulated to all members.
Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.
The local member for the application, Councillor J Astill, attended the meeting and
spoke against the application.
AGREED:
That the application be deferred, for officers to negotiate with the developer
amendments in line with the recommendations of the committee, namely – concerns
regarding the distribution of affordable homes; car parking, and its poor relationship
to associated housing: the distance of the easement between the proposed
development and the nearby commercial development, and how ‘agent of change’
had affected this; drainage issues on the site and solutions being sought;
maintenance of dykes (should they need to be kept), and maintenance of the
easement; maintenance of the acoustic fence; and location of the open space.
(Moved by Councillor Grocock, seconded by Councillor Coupland).
Oral representations were received in respect of the above application in accordance
with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:
David Standbridge (Resident, Objector)
Cllr Drury returned to the room at 20.00.
5.

H14-1252-18
Planning No. and Applicant
H14-1252-18 Hawkstone Properties
PLC

Proposal
Full application for proposed mixed
use development, comprising of drive
thro’ coffee shop A3 use, café/hot
food takeaway A3 use, A3 and A
restaurants and D2 assembly and
leisure (fitness centre) and/or B1, B2,
B8 (trade counter) use, at land at the
junction of Wardentree
Lane/Wardentree Park, Pinchbeck.

Page 6

-3PLANNING COMMITTEE - 26 June 2019

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had previously been circulated to all members.
Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.
AGREED:
To grant permission, subject to thee conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the report.
(Moved by Councillor Avery, seconded by Councillor Coupland).
Oral representations were received in respect of the above application in accordance
with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:
John Dadge - (Agent)
6.

H11-0131-19
Planning No. and Applicant
H11-0131-19 Long Sutton Parish
Council

Proposal
Full application for change of use of
park land for the extension of burial
ground within Long Sutton Cemetery
at cinder Ash Park, London Road,
Long Sutton.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had previously been circulated to all members.
Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.
AGREED:
That, contrary to recommendations, planning permission be granted, as the
community benefit of providing the cemetery extension outweighed other
considerations. This decision needed to be referred to the Secretary of State via the
National Planning Casework Unit due to the Sport England objection.
(Moved by Councillor Brewis, seconded by Councillor Avery)

Page 7

-4PLANNING COMMITTEE - 26 June 2019

7.

H17-0425-19
Planning No. and Applicant
H17-0425-19 Mr M Spindler

Proposal
Full application for extension and
alterations to dwelling at 83 Seas End
Road, Surfleet, Spalding

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had previously been circulated to all members.
Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.
AGREED:
To grant permission, subject to the conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the report.
(Moved by Councillor Avery, seconded by Councillor Drury).
8.

PLANNING UPDATES.
The Chairman announced that, since the last report, 8 appeal decisions had been
received, and all 8 had been dismissed.

9.

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT.
There were none.
(The meeting ended at 9:01 pm).
(End of minutes)

Page 8

Agenda Item 5.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Development Manager

To:

Planning Committee - 24 July 2019

(Author:

Polly Harris-Gorf - Principal Planning Officer)

Purpose:

To consider Planning Application H09-0276-19

Application Number: H0S-0276-19

Date Received:

11 March 2019

Application Type:

FULL

Description:

Erection of 84 dwellings with associated garaging, roads and sewers

Location:

Land rear: Fen Road Holbeach Spalding

Applicant:

Ashwood Homes

Agent:

N K W Design Ltd

Ward:

Holbeach Town

Ward Councillors:

Cllr F Biggadike
Cllr T Carter
Cllr G Rudkin

You can view this application on the Council's web site at
http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference = H09-0276-19

1.0

REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

1.1

This site is not allocated for development within the Local Plan but is within the settlement
boundary of Holbeach and, therefore, it is considered that this raises policy matters with
planning committee consideration.

2.0

PROPOSAL

2.1

Full application for the erection of 84 dwellings with associated garaging, roads and sewers.

2.2

The development proposes a mix of two-storey dwellings and bungalows, and has been
amended since submission to locate bungalows adjacent to existing bungalows. The
development would be accessed via Fen Road and would provide a mix of market and
affordable dwellings. The affordable mix would be as follows:
4
6
4
1

one-bed Rented
two-beds Rented
three-beds Rented
four-beds Rented

3 two-beds Intermediate (shared ownership)
3 three-beds Intermediate (shared ownership)
Totalling 21 dwellings, which is 25% of the proposed development.
2.3

The materials will be taken from a palette of facing bricks with the occasional use of boarding
on key focal plots if desired. Concrete roof tiles will be used through the development to
continue the coherent approach. Details of windows, eaves and verges would be simple to

Page 9

Page 10

Page 11

Page 12

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

7.39

Impact on Adjoining Residents

7.40

The bungalows in Gamekeeper Close have shallow rear gardens and large kitchen/dining room
French doors. The current boundary treatment is a post and rail fence, which makes the most of
views across the application site.

7.41

The layout had been revised since submission to site three bungalows on the site boundary
shared with Gamekeeper Close, which is a recent development of detached bungalows with
limited rear garden depth. In addition Plot 1 would contain a two-storey house with single-storey
garage to the north, which would maintain privacy for the new bungalow to the north.

7.42

The current openness of the boundary to Gamekeeper Close would change, however, the
applicant could erect a 2.0 metre high fence or boundary without the need for planning
permission currently. It is considered that the formation of a more robust boundary between the
existing and proposed properties would on balance be acceptable.

7.43

The wider layout of the development sites three bungalows adjacent to the existing bungalow of
Fenway, Fen Road, to the south.

7.44

The relationships to existing dwellings on the boundaries of the site are considered to be
acceptable; established dwellings along Fen Road tend to have comfortable sized gardens and
this, together with the length of gardens proposed and the orientation of buildings would
maintain adequate separation distances with regard to impacts on light and overlooking.

7.45

In order to protect future amenities, it is recommended that permitted development rights for the
dwellings adjacent to Gamekeeper Close (Plots 1, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30 and 31) are
removed in order that a level of control can be kept regarding future changes to these
properties, and the removal of permitted development rights for roof alterations the dwellings on
Plots 32 to 46 (consecutive) in order that no roof lights of dormer windows can be installed
without planning permission, so any impact of future roof alterations and roof extensions on
adjoining residents in Fen Road can be considered.

7.46

It is not considered that the development of this site for housing would lead to unacceptable
noise impacts. Impact of noise, disturbance and vibration during construction during
construction is temporary by its nature, however, a condition is suggested to seek a
construction management plan to give a level of control over hours of building works and
mitigation regarding noise and dust.

7.47

Heritage Impact

7.48

The LCC Historic Environment Officer confirms that the written scheme of archaeological
investigation submitted is sufficient for the evaluation to be carried out. This is to be controlled
by conditions set out below.

7.49

Local Services and Section 106 Contributions

7.50

The development would have an impact on demand for local health and education services,
and the contributions requested by the NHS and the LCC Education Service are to be provided
via a Section 106 legal agreement.

7.51

In addition the Section 106 is to provide the 25% affordable housing provision.

7.52

Wildlife and trees

7.53

Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust confirm that the Protected Species Report appears to have been a
well thought out plan and design in terms of its impact on biodiversity and includes net gain in
line with national and local planning policy.

Page 18

7.54

There are mitigation measures set out in the report that can be controlled via condition.

7.55

No impacts on trees has been raised as an issue, and the development is considered to be
acceptable.

7.56

Additional Considerations

7.57

Other Matters

7.58

The impact of the development on the value of dwellings in the area is not a planning concern
and can be given no weight.

7.59

The application has been considered in the light of the current development in the area and the
impacts it would have on residents. One objector has raised the matter of an outstanding
consent for development for 3 chalet style bungalows on adjacent land that has not commenced
(H09-0830-18 refers). The permission granted on the adjoining land contained a number of pre
commencement conditions that have nor been discharged.

7.60

As the development has not commenced on this adjoining site is cannot be assumed that the
development is guaranteed to go ahead. It is not considered that the proposed development
being currently considered can be fettered by development that has not taken place on adjoining
land. For this reason little weight can be given to the outstanding permission on the adjoining
land.

7.61
7.62

Public Sector Equality Duty
In making this decision the Authority must have regard to the public sector equality duty (PSED)
under s.149 of the Equalities Act. This means that the Council must have due regard to the need
(in discharging its functions) to:
B. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not. This may include removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; taking
steps to meet the special needs of those with a protected characteristic; encouraging
participation in public life (or other areas where they are underrepresented) of people with a
protected characteristic(s).
C. Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who
do not including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.

7.63

The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

7.64

The PSED must be considered as a relevant factor in making this decision but does not impose
a duty to achieve the outcomes in s.149. It is only one factor that needs to be considered, and
may be balanced against other relevant factors.

7.65

It is not considered that the recommendation to grant permission in this case will have a
disproportionately adverse impact on a protected characteristic.

7.66

Human Rights

7.67

In making a decision, the Authority should be aware of and take into account any implications
that may arise from the Human Rights Act 1998. Under the Act, it is unlawful for a public
authority such as South Holland District Council to act in a manner that is incompatible with the
European Convention on Human Rights. The Authority is referred specifically to Article 8 (right
to respect for private and family life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property).

7.68

It is not considered that the recommendation to grant permission in this case interferes with
local residents' right to respect for their private and family life, home and correspondence,

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

22.

All roads within the development hereby permitted must be constructed to an
engineering standard equivalent to that of adoptable highways. Those roads that are to be put
forward for adoption as public highways must be
constructed in accordance with the Lincolnshire County Council Development Road
Specification that is current at the time of construction and the developer will be required to
enter into a legal agreement with the Highway Authority under Section 38 of the Highways Act
1980. Those roads that are not to be voluntarily put forward for adoption as public highways,
may be subject to action by the Highway Authority under Section 219 (the Advance Payments
code) of the Highways Act 1980. In all cases, the developer is advised to undertake early
discussions with statutory undertakers to co-ordinate the laying of utility services under the
highway.

23.

Please contact the Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks and Permitting Team on 01522
782070 to discuss any proposed statutory utility connections and any other works which will be
required within the public highway in association with the development permitted under this
Consent. This will enable Lincolnshire County Council to assist in the coordination and timings
of these works.

24.

The highway improvement works referred to in Condition 9 are required to be carried out by
means of a legal agreement between the landowner and the County Council, as the Local
Highway Authority.

Background papers:- Planning Application Working File
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email

Richard Fidler , Development Manager
01775 764428
rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report: Appendix A - Plan A

Page 25

Page 26

Agenda Item 6.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Development Manager

To:

Planning Committee - 24 July 2019

(Author:

Polly Harris-Gorf - Principal Planning Officer)

Purpose:

To consider Planning Application H06-0233-19

Application Number: H06-0233-19

Date Received:

01 March 2019

Application Type:

FULL

Description:

Change of use of land (part retrospective) to provide five additional gypsy/traveller
pitches with one day room per pitch and existing stables converted to dayrooms.
Also, erection of one new store and retention of sheds for pitch 1, with construction of
internal road to facilitate separate ingress and egress to and from the site, including
hardstanding

Location:

GREEN ACRES PARK ROPERS GATE GEDNEY

Applicant:

Ms C Bushby

Agent:

Parkin Planning Services

Ward:

Gedney

Ward Councillors:

Cllr J L Reynolds

You can view this application on the Council's web site at
http:!/planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=H06-0233-19

1.0

REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

1.1

The application raises matters of planning policy worthy of committee consideration.

2.0

PROPOSAL

2.1

This Full planning application proposes the change of use of paddock land to provide 5
additional gypsy/traveller pitches, extending the existing, established gypsy/traveller site, which
currently accommodates three traveller pitches, with paddock to the rear.

2.2

Each proposed pitch would consist of sufficient land to accommodate two mobile homes, space
for 2 touring caravans, a day room, garden space and parking, together with a domestic size
storage shed.

2.3

In addition, a revised and upgraded road is proposed.

2.4

The application has been amended since submission to reduce the number of touring caravans
to be stored on the site.

2.5

The application is supported by a Design and Access Statement, Flood Risk Assessment,
including a sequential test consideration, and a Flood Evacuation Plan. A letter of support from
an adjoining neighbour was included at submission and this is discussed below.

2.6

Since submission the application has been revised to reduce the number of touring caravans to

Page 27

be kept on the site.

3.0

SITE DESCRIPTION

3.1

The application site is outside of defined settlement limits and is, therefore, designated as being
located in the open countryside. Vehicular access is gained to the site from Ropers Gate.

3.2

The land is bounded to the south by a field drain. The site and the surrounding land is located
within Flood Zone 3.

3.3

Hallgate Cottage, which is a detached dwelling in substantial gardens, stands to the west of the
site.

3.4

Currently the land accommodates three traveller pitches, each with room for one or two
motorhomes and touring caravans, and the plots are gravelled. There is also a partially built day
room and several stables on the wider site. The current use of the site is controlled by
conditions appended to previous decisions and not more than 4 touring caravans and 4 mobile
homes can be sited on the land at any one time, and no storage or sales of materials,
machinery, vehicles, waste or other commercial uses or processes, can take place on the site.
A maximum of 2 additional touring caravans may be sited on the land for no more than 28 days
in any one calendar year.

3.5

In addition occupation of the development is limited to a person or persons who meet the
definition of a gypsy or traveller as defined by national guidance and any resident dependants.

4.0

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

4.1

The Development Plan
If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made
under the Planning Acts, Section 38 (6) to the Town and Country Planning Act as amended by
the 2004 Act states that the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

4.2

South East Lincolnshire Local Plan, March 2019

4.3

Policy 1 Spatial Strategy
Policy 2 Development Management
Policy 3 Design of New Development
Policy 4 Approach to Flood Risk
Policy 11 Distribution of New Housing
Policy 17 Providing a Mix of Housing
Policy 19 Rural Exception Sites
Policy 20 Accomm. for Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople
Policy 28 The Natural Environment
Policy 36 Vehicle and Cycle Parking
APPENDIX 6 Parking Standards

4.4

National Guidance

4.5

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), 2019

4.6

2. Achieving sustainable development
4. Decision-making
5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
8. Promoting healthy and safe communities
11. Making effective use of land
12. Achieving well-designed places
14. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

adjacent to the site at the junction of Ropers Gate with the B1359 and Kingsgate consists of a
handful of detached dwellings, and there are detached dwellings and farms further to the north,
along the 81359 and Kingsgate. Chapelgate and Gedney are located to the south west,
accessed from Hall Gate.
7.15

The proposals would not place undue pressure on local infrastructure, and a package treatment
plant would be installed to process foul sewerage, with soakaways being sued for surface water
drainage. Refuse collection is be via the Council, as per current arrangements.

7.16

The proposal would not impact on the setting of the Grade II Listed Hallgate House, which is
located to the south west of the road junction. The listed property sits within its own gardens
and is not related to the application site.

7.17

No issues of nature conservation have been identified, as the land is a pa ddock, put to grass. It
is not proposed to alter the hedging around the site.

7.18

The revised access details would not prejudice highway safety or give rise to problems of
parking or highway a ccess, and this is confirmed by the LCC Highways service.

7.19

The site has been acceptable for a permanent residential use and would provide further
occupants with access to educa tion, health care and recreational fa cilities, shops and
employment within reasonable travelling dista nces, preferably by wa lking, cycling or public
transport.

7.20

The site is suitable (or capable of being made suitable) for mixed residential and business use,
however it is proposed to restrict business use of the site by conditions, in order that the Council
retains an element of control of the site, in order to protect the residential amenities of
neighbouring residents, which would be consistent with the restrictions placed on the existing
use of the site.

7.21

The site is located within Flood Zone 3a or 3b, however, a sequential test has been submitted
and measures put in place to ensure residents' safety. The sequential test is brief, however, this
site is to accommodate for an identified shortfa ll, and on this occa sion, given the existing use of
the site, the proposal is considered to be an acceptable extension of this site.

7.22

Impact on Neighbouring Residents

7.23

The application site has a boundary with Hallgate Cottage and is separated by a mature hedge.
It is considered that other properties in the a rea , such as Hallgate Bungalow or Hallgate House
are going to be impacted unduly by this development.

7.24

Visual Impact

7.25

The site is set back from Ropers Ga te, and is glimpsed from the surrounding area. On balance
it is not considered that an increase in the number of pitches on the site would have such a
negative impact on the visual amenity of the area that permission could be refused.

7.26

Impact on a Listed Building

7.27

The impact on the setting of the Grade II Listed Hallgate House, which is located to the south
west of the road junction is addressed above The listed property sits within its own gardens and
is not related to the application site. The property sits as an entirely independent dwelling
unrelated to the application land.

7.28

Highway matters

7.29

The LCC Highway service do not raise objection to the proposa l, subject to a condition. The
road quality and layout would be adequate for the development.

Page 33

7.30

Flooding

7.31

The site is located within Flood Zone 3, and consideration has been given to the floor heights of
the caravans and the safety of residents. On this occasion the Environment Agency raise no
objection.

7.32

Additional Considerations
Objection has been raised that the proposed scale of the development will devalue the area. It
is not clear whether this relates to the visual quality of the area, which is discussed above, or an
impact on land and house values. If it is the latter, this is not a planning concern and can be
given no weight.

7.33

Public Sector Equality Duty
In making this decision the Authority must have regard to the public sector equality duty (PSED)
under s.149 of the Equalities Act. This means that the Council must have due regard to the
need (in discharging its functions) to:
A. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited
by the Act
B. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not. This may include removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; taking
steps to meet the special needs of those with a protected characteristic; encouraging
participation in public life (or other areas where they are underrepresented) of people with a
protected characteristic(s).
C. Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who
do not including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.
The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.
The PSED must be considered as a relevant factor in making this decision but does not impose
a duty to achieve the outcomes in s.149. It is only one factor that needs to be considered, and
may be balanced against other relevant factors.
It is not considered that the recommendation to grant permission in this case will have a
disproportionately adverse impact on a protected characteristic.
Human Rights
In making a decision, the Authority should be aware of and take into account any implications
that may arise from the Human Rights Act 1998. Under the Act, it is unlawful for a public
authority such as South Holland District Council to act in a manner that is incompatible with the
European Convention on Human Rights. The Authority is referred specifically to Article 8 (right
to respect for private and family life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property).
It is not considered that the recommendation to grant permission in this case interferes with
local residents' right to respect for their private and family life, home and correspondence,
except insofar as it is necessary to protect the rights and freedoms of others (in this case, the
rights of the applicant). The Council is also permitted to control the use of property in
accordance with the general public interest and the recommendation to grant permission is
considered to be a proportionate response to the submitted application based on the
considerations set out in this report.The principle of the proposal is to be considered in the light
of the policy advice set out within the NPPF, Planning policy for traveller sites. prepared by
DCLG in August 2015 and policies set out in the South Lincolnshire Local Plan.

7.34

For the reasons set out above it is recommended that planning permission is granted.

8.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1

Grant planning permission subject to the conditions listed in Section 9.0 of this report.

Page 34

Page 35

7.

The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved FRA (completed by Geoff Beel Consultancy, June 2015) including the following
mitigation measures detailed within the FRA:
- the finished floor levels of the permanent residences are set a minimum of 1m above existing
ground levels
- The caravans will be securely anchored to solid concrete plinths.
The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and shall subsequently
remain in place for the duration of the occupation of the site.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policies 2 and 4 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan, March 2019 which reflect national guidance contained in both the National Planning
Policy Framework 2019.

8.

Prior to the occupation of the site, the existing agricultural vehicular access crossing shall be
brought up to the standards of a domestic property vehicle access crossing, in accordance with
details which shall first be approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason:ln the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and the safety of the users
of the site.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan, March 2019 which reflect national guidance contained in both the National Planning
Policy Framework 2019.

9.

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application
by assessing the application against all material considerations, including national guidance,
planning policies and representations that have been received during the public consultation
exercise and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in as timely a manner as
possible in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out
within the National Planning Policy Framework.
This decision notice, the relevant accompanying report and the determined plans can be viewed
online at:
http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningSearch

Background papers:- Planning Application Working File

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email

Richard Fidler , Development Manager
01775 764428
rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report: Appendix A - Plan A

Page 36

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Development Manager

To:

Planning Committee - 24 July 2019

(Author:

Polly Harris-Gorf - Principal Planning Officer)

Purpose:

To consider Planning Application H14-0366-19

Application Number: H14-0366-19

Date Received:

03 April 2019

Application Type:

FULL

Description:

Change of use of land to self-storage facility comprising 150 storage container units
(88 Use), access and parking

Location:

Land at Wardentree Lane & Benner Road Pinchbeck Spalding

Applicant:

Steven Layn (Holdings) Ltd

Agent:

Fisher German LLP

Ward:

Pinchbeck and Surfleet

Ward Councillors:

Cllr S A Slade
Cllr J Avery
Cllr E J Sneath

You can view this application on the Council's web site at
http:!/planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=H14-0366-19

1.0

REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

1.1

The application raises issues of employment policy that are worthy of planning committee
consideration.

2.0

PROPOSAL

2.1

Change of use of land to self-storage facility comprising 150 storage container units (88 Use
Class), access and parking. The containers would have a bottle green appearance. The
containers would be elevated by at least 300mm above the existing ground level to allow for
drainage. The site would be accessed via a new junction off Benner Road to the west of the
site.

2.2

The storage container units would operate on a self-storage basis and security fencing/access
gate to ensure only registered tenants can enter and exit the site. The containers would be 2.6
metres high, 2.5 metres in width and 6.1 metres in length. There would also be low level down
lighting mounted on containers as well as CCTV covering the site with remote monitoring.

2.3

A portacabin is proposed to be used as an office/reception area for the staff to run the
operations of the site to the south west of the site, near the access, and four parking spaces for
staff to the south east of the office.

2.4

Two local full-time jobs would be generated.

2.5

The applicant's wider company is a self-storage enterprise, offering secure self-store domestic
storage, storage services for removal companies as well as business storage, temporary

Page 39

storage, office storage, long term storage, DIY storage and furniture storage.
2.6

The application is supported by a Design and Access Statement, Drainage Details, a Flood Risk
Assessment and additional justification has been submitted during the processing of the
application.

2.7

In support of the application the agent has stated the following -

2.8

The site is allocated within the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036 (March 2019) as
Proposed Main Employment Area under Policy 7 (Improving South East Lincolnshire's
Employment Land Portfolio). This policy does not specify the type of B Class Use on the site
however, for main employment areas supports a mix of B Class uses including BB. Whilst
paragraphs 80-82 set out the Government's commitment to building a strong, competitive
economy. Paragraph 80 states that policies and decisions should help create the conditions in
which business can invest, expand and adapt. Paragraph 82 sets out that policies and
decisions should recognise and address the specific locational requirements of different
sectors. This includes making provision for storage and distribution
operations at a variety of scales and in suitably accessible locations.

2.9

The site will not only support local trades, but provides the ability and facilities for people to
become self-employed trades people without entering into either expensive, or time liabilities.
These trades people are then able to employ numbers of individuals.

2.10

Applicant has numerous examples of successful business start-ups. To put this into numbers,
the construction work will generate much local employment and once the site is fully
operational, two local full-time jobs will be generated. However, in terms of real job generation
from new business start-ups, the Applicant would have no hesitation of stating 30 or more.

2.11

The Applicant has 14 years of experience in the containerised self-storage business. They have
similar sites at Littleport, East Derham and Wisbech and between 10-15% of customers will be
trade customers in one form or another. On a site of 150 container units between 15 and 22 will
be used by a business.

2.12

Mainly they are used by small independent new or relatively new businesses, however, they
can also be any size of business right up to national companies who need temporary space in a
certain location.

2.13

.... on the East Derham site which has 190 storage container units. There are 26 companies
currently with them on a monthly contract. Many of these have been with them since it has been
running and the number is likely to increase.

3.0

SITE DESCRIPTION

3.1

The application site runs to some 0.8 hectare and is bounded by Wardentree Lane to the north
and Benner Road to the west, whilst there are existing commercial uses to the eastern and
southern boundaries. Further to the north and west are also existing commercial uses. The site
is within a Flood Zone 3 area.

3.2

The site is located within the wider Proposed Main Employment Area under Policy 7 (Improving
South East Lincolnshire's Employment Land Portfolio). This policy is discussed further below.

4.0

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

4.1

The Development Plan

4.2

South East Lincolnshire Local Plan, March 2019
1 Spatial Strategy
2 Development Management

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

7.21

The PSED must be considered as a relevant factor in making this decision but does not impose
a duty to achieve the outcomes in s.149. It is only one factor that needs to be considered, and
may be balanced against other relevant factors.

7.22

It is not considered that the recommendation to refuse permission in this case will have a
disproportionately adverse impact on a protected characteristic.

7.23

Human Rights

7.24

In making a decision, the Authority should be aware of and take into account any implications
that may arise from the Human Rights Act 1998. Under the Act, it is unlawful for a public
authority such as South Holland District Council to act in a manner that is incompatible with the
European Convention on Human Rights. The Authority is referred specifically to Article 8 (right
to respect for private and family life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property).

7.25

It is not considered that the recommendation to refuse permission in this case interferes with
local residents' right to respect for their private and family life, home and correspondence,
except insofar as it is necessary to protect the rights and freedoms of others (in this case, the
rights of the applicant). The Council is also permitted to control the use of property in
accordance with the general public interest and the recommendation to grant permission is
considered to be a proportionate response to the submitted application based on the
considerations set out in this report.

7.26

Conclusion

7.27

Given the location of the site within an area identified as a Main Employment Area in the
SELLP, the use of this site for a B8 use of this nature, creating only 2 identifiable jobs would be
a lost opportunity to contribute to the diversification of the local economy and jobs market to
attract more highly skilled and high value employment to the area. For this reason it is
considered that the application is contrary to Policy 7 of the SELLP and the intentions of the
NPPF 2019.

8.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1

Refuse permission for the reasons listed in section 9 of this report.

9.0

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

1.

The development would utilise 0.8 hectares to a B8 Use Class, providing only 2 identifiable new
jobs. It is considered that the development of this site as a self storage facility (Use Class B8)
would fail to accord with the provisions of Policy 7 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan
2019 and the intentions of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. The proposal would
fail to achieve an acceptable level of employment generation within this area.

2.

The determined plans and documents are:
Planning application form
Design and Access Statement March 2019
Flood Risk Assessment RevA May 2019
LOCATION PLAN 122154-001
BLOCK PLAN AS EXISTING 122154-002
BLOCK PLAN AS PROPOSED 122154-003
CONTAINER PLAN & ELEVATIONS 122154-004
STANDARD CONTAINER DRAINAGE SECTION 122154-005

Page 44

3.

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application
by assessing it against all material considerations, including national guidance, planning
policies and representations that have been received during the public consultation exercise.
Furthermore, matters of concern with the application have been identified and discussed with
the Applicant. However, the issues are so fundamental to the proposal that it has not been
possible to negotiate a satisfactory solution and due to the harm, which has been clearly
identified within the reason(s) for the refusal, approval has not been possible.
This decision notice, the relevant accompanying report and the determined plans can be viewed
online at http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningSearch

Background papers:- Planning Application Working File
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email

Richard Fidler , Development Manager
01775 764428
rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report: Appendix A - Plan A

Page 45

Page 46

Agenda Item 8.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Development Manager

To:

Planning Committee - 24 July 2019

(Author:

David Grant - Planning Officer)

Purpose:

To consider Planning Application H16-0598-19

Application Number: H16-0598-19

Date Received:

14 June 2019

Application Type:

FULL

Description:

Rear single-storey extension to create accessible bedroom and wetroom

Location:

9 Rowan Avenue Spalding

Applicant:

Mrs Tracey Bradley

Agent:

South Holland Building
Consultancy

Ward:

Spalding St Pauls

Ward Councillors:

Cllr R A Gibson
Cllr G P Scalese

You can view this application on the Council's web site at
http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference = H16-0598-19

1.0

REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

1.1

The agent is South Holland District Council Building Consultancy.

2.0

PROPOSAL

2.1

This is an application for a rear single-storey extension to create accessible bedroom and
wetroom to a semi-detached house. The proposal would project 9.89 metres and be 4.265m
wide. Brick is to match that of the existing dwelling with a felt or fibreglass flat roof.

3.0

SITE DESCRIPTION

3.1

The application property is a semi-detached house with an existing flat roof element projecting
5.9 metres to the rear. The proposal is within defined settlement limits and the surrounding area
is characterised by semi-detached dwellings of a similar age and design.

4.0

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

4.1

The Development Plan
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan, March 2019
If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made
under the Planning Acts, Section 38 (6) to the Town and Country Planning Act as amended by
the 2004 Act states that the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

Page 47

Policy 2 - Development Management
Policy 3 - Design of New Development

National Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), 2019
Section 12 - Achieving well-designed places
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

5.0

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1

None

6.0

REPRESENTATIONS

6.1

None

7.0

CONSIDERATIONS

7. 1

Planning Considerations

7.2

Design

7.3

The design is considered to be in keeping with the existing dwelling. The proposal meets the
specific needs of the occupant and does not require a design that is at odds with the character
of the surrounding a rea . It would be brick built with a flat roof as the existing rear element.

7.4

Impact on Residential Amenity

7.5

There is not considered to be an impact on residential amenity arising from this proposa l. The
distance to the north western boundary remains the same at 1,45 metres and to the common
boundary it would be approximately 1.8 metres closer. The height of the extension does not
come higher than the existing rear projection, and there is not considered to be an overlooking
or overshadowing impact.

7.6

Additional Considerations
Public Sector Equality Duty
In making this decision the Authority must have regard to the public sector equality duty (PSED)
under s.149 of the Equalities Act. This means that the Council must have due regard to the
need (in discharging its functions) to:
A. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act.
B. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not. This may include removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; taking
steps to meet the special needs of those with a protected characteristic; encouraging
participation in public life (or other areas where they are under represented) of people with a
protected characteristic(s).
C. Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who
do not, including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.
The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Page 48

Page 49

3.

All new and replacement brickwork utilised in carrying out the development hereby permitted
shall match as closely as possible that of the principal existing building on the site in terms of
the type of brick(s), mortar mix and method of bonding.
Reason: In the interests of the architectural and visual integrity of the overall development and
the visual amenity of the area in which it is set.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan, 2019.

4.

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application
by assessing it against all material considerations, including national guidance, planning
policies and representations that have been received during the public consultation exercise,
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission.
This decision notice, the relevant accompanying report and the determined plans can be viewed
online at http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningSearch

Background papers:- Planning Application Working File
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email

Richard Fidler , Development Manager
01775 764428
rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report: Appendix A - Plan A

Page 50

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Development Manager

To:

Planning Committee - 24 July 2019

(Author:

Joan lsus - Planning Officer)

Purpose:

To consider Planning Application H18-0599-19

Application Number: H 18-0599-19

Date Received:

14 June 2019

Application Type:

FULL

Description:

Rear single-storey flat roofed extension

Location:

72 Princes Street Sutton Bridge Spalding

Applicant:

Ms Emma Fenwick-French

Agent:

South Holland Building
Consultancy

Ward:

Sutton Bridge

Ward Councillors:

Cllr C J T H Brewis
Cllr M D Booth

You can view this application on the Council's web site at
http://planning.sholland.gov. uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference = H18-0599-19

1.0

REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

1.1

The agent is South Holland Building Consultancy.

2.0

PROPOSAL

2.1

The proposal is for a single-storey flat roof rear extension to a semi-detached house.

3.0

SITE DESCRIPTION

3.1

The site is part of an established residential area of semi-detached houses, with long rear
gardens. The house has an existing single-storey flat roofed element to the rear. It is within the
settlement boundary of Sutton Bridge as defined in the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan.

4.0

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

4.1

The Development Plan
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan, March 2019
Policy 2 - Development Management
Policy 3 - Design of New Development
If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made
under the Planning Acts, Section 38 (6) to the Town and Country Planning Act as amended by
the 2004 Act states that the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

Page 53

National Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), 2019
Section 12 - Achieving well-designed places.
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

5.0

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1

None.

6.0

REPRESENTATIONS

6.1

Sutton Bridge Parish Council

6.2

One representation has been made to Support the proposal as it is an "improvement to existing
building, giving accessibility, in keeping with the street scene".

7.0

CONSIDERATIONS

7. 1

Planning Considerations

7.2

Design and Layout

7.3

The proposed extension would protrude 4 metres from the original rear wall of the house. It
would measure approximately 4.70 metres in width and 3 metres in height. Having regard to the
dimensions of the dwelling, the proposed extension would be subservient to the host property in
terms of scale, massing and bulking.

7.4

The purpose of the development is to accommodate a wash room with toilet facility for an
individual with severe mobility difficulties.

7.5

The facing brickwork would match the existing house, with the flat roof being of felt or
fibreglass. The appearance would be acceptable, particularly given the existing flat roof
element which would be replaced by the new extension.

7.6

Residential Amenity

7.7

The separation distances between the extension and the site boundaries are sufficient to avoid
any negative impact to adjacent neighbours. Additionally, the development is of modest scale
and the existing boundary treatment obscures views from the ground floor level of adjacent
residential plots to the proposed extension.

7.8

Additional Considerations

7.9

Public Sector Equality Duty

7.10

In making this decision the Authority must have regard to the public sector equality duty (PSED)
under s.149 of the Equalities Act. This means that the Council must have due regard to the
need (in discharging its functions) to:
A. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited
by the Act
B. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not. This may include removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; taking

Page 54

Page 55

2.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:
DFG/19/1048
DFG/19/1048
DFG/19/1048
DFG/19/1048
DFG/19/1048
DFG/19/1048
DFG/19/1048
DFG/19/1048

01A;
02;
03;
05A;
06;
16;
17;
18

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3.

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application
by assessing it against all material considerations, including national guidance, planning
policies and representations that have been received during the public consultation exercise,
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission.
This decision notice, the relevant accompanying report and the determined plans can be viewed
online at http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningSearch

Background papers:- Planning Application Working File
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email

Richard Fidler , Development Manager
01775 764428
rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report: Appendix A - Plan A

Page 56

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Development Manager

To:

Planning Committee

Author:

Richard Fidler

Subject:

Planning Appeals

Purpose:

To provide an update on recent Appeal Decisions

Recommendation
a) That the contents of this report be noted

1.0

OVERVIEW

1.1

Since the last report 3 Appeal Decisions have been received, the results are as follows:
Appeals Dismissed:

2

Appeals Allowed:

1

Appeals Part Allowed:

0

1.2

Since the 1st April 2017 95 planning appeal decisions have been received of which 69 have been
dismissed, which equates to a success rate of 72.63%

2.0

PLANNING APPEALS DISMISSED
H22-0747-18 Applegate UK Ltd - Lucy Buttery
APP/A2525/W/19/3223142
Land South: 247 Broadaate Weston Hills
Decision Date:
Proposed residential development and
2019
associated works
06 June
The Inspector concluded that the proposed development would not provide a suitable location for
housing having regard to the character and appearance of the area. Therefore, it would conflict
with SELLP Policy 1 which directs developments within settlement boundaries and with SELLP
Policies 2 and 3 which seek developments that meet considerations including the character and
appearance of the area. The proposal would also conflict with paragraph 127 of the NPPF in this
reaard.
H23-0718-18 Mr M Lakey - MPL Home Improvements - Polly Harris-Gorf
Cooelade Lodoe Little Lane
APP/A2525/W/19/3224871
Change of use of land from paddock to builders Decision Date:
2019
yard (retrospective). Erection of fencing and the 25 June
installation of a septic tank.
The Inspector concluded that the use of the site for a builders yard would have a harmful impact
on the overall rural character and appearance of the countryside, the level of activity at the site
59
would be likely to cause a level of noisePage
and disturbance
which would harm the living conditions of
a nearby property and the development would result in an unacceptable adverse impact on

highway safety due to the increased potential for conflict between vehicles on a narrow road.
Therefore the development would be contrary to Policies 2, 3, 7 and 30 of the SELLP and also be
at odds with the overarchina aims of the NPPF.
3.0

PLANNING APPEALS ALLOWED
H16-0462-18 Mr R Karaoglan - Joan lsus
APP/A2525/W/18/3208189
15 New Road Spaldina
Change of use from A1 use (Shop) to A3/A5
Decision Date:
18 June
(Restaurant/Takeaway)
019
The Inspector concluded that the proposal would not adversely affect the retail function of
Spalding town centre nor would it adversely affect the living conditions of the occupants of
surroundina properties. Therefore it would accord with Policies 2 24 and 25 of the SELLP.

4.0

ENFORCEMENT APPEALS DISMISSED
None

5.0

ENFORCEMENT APPEALS UPHELD
None

Background Papers - Planning Application and Enforcement Working Files

Lead Contact Officer

Richard Fidler; Development Manager
01775 764428
rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Page 60

